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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical
Hospital Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash fiows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
yther information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

L
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
materiat if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

=« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

J/attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2022 and hence reporting
under Section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 41(iii) to the financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 41(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current year.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Monisha Parikh

Partner
Place:- Bengaluru (Membership No. 47840)
Date :- May 20, 2022 UDIN:- 22047840AJLJCC3172

MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Narayana Hrudayalaya
Surgical Hospital Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial, reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the

Vompany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

T&»Qx HW’\L_,—

Monisha Parikh

Partner
Place:- Bengaluru (Membership No. 47840)
Date :- May 20, 2022 UDIN:- 22047840AJLICC3172

MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that -

(1

(1)

(

(M

(i)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(A)

(8)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,
capital work in progress and right of use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment,
capital work in progress and right of use assets to cover all the items in a
phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

Based on our examination of the possession certificate provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, disclosed in the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of
immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed as
right of use assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in
the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the
agreement.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right
of Use Assets and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder, and hence reporting under clause (i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management
at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books of account.
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(i) (b)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (@

(vii) (b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly statements
comprising (financial information, cash budget statements ) filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided
guarantees or securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year nor has any
unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act. Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
services rendered. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records
have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of
Customs, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2022.

Y
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(viii)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(x)

(x)

(xi)

(xi)

(xi)

(xii)

(a)

(b)

(9

(d)

(e)

()

(@)

(b)

(@

(b)

(9

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial
institution or other lender.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting
under clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting
on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable. '
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)
(b)(©)

(xvi) (d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the
Companies Act for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc.
as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to
us, internal audit system under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clauses (xiv)(a) and
(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b)
and (c¢) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group (“Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions) does not have any CIC (Core
Investment Company) as part of the group and accordingly reporting under
clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year covered
by our audit but had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 1343.61 lakhs in
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more,
or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees
five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year and hence,
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W100018)

Tl e W

Monisha Parikh
Partner

(Membership No.47840)
UDIN : 22047840AJLJCC3172
Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 20, 2022
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022
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Nariyina Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

Balanc sheet
(T in lakhs)
Note As at As at
i No. March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETs
Non-current assets
Propery, plant and equipment 4 9,209.22 R,180.58
Rightoluse assels 5 432.35 52242
Capital work-in-progress 1 208.88 97548
Intangiblc assets 4 2,197.34 2,636.81
Financial assels
(i) Other financial asscts 6 (a) 834,71 716,25
Income wax assets (net) 7 - 377.39
Deferred wax assels (net) 30 106 82 -
Other non-current assels 8(n) 842.52 866.65
Total non-current asscts 13,831.84 14,335.58
Current Assets
Inventaries 9 455.33 41086
Financial asscts
(i) Trade reccivables 10 4,406.81 2,488.22
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 (@) 408.27 145.11
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11(b) 1.00 1.00
(iv) Other lnanciul assels 6 (b) 1.418.65 1,889.54
Other current assets 8 (b) 370.54 33741
Totul current asscts 7,060.60 5,272.14
TOTAL ASSETS 20,892.44 19,607.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capilal 12 (a) 2,442.59 2,44259
Other cquity 12 (b) [R6T.36) {3,069 4%)
Total equity 1,575.23 (626.89)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 (a) 1.125.63 1.683.03
(ii) Lensc liabilitics 14 () 458.65 576.67
(iii} Other financial liabilitics 15 (a) 7,554.63 R,374.82
Provisions 16 () 174.29 131.44
Other non-current liabilities 17 () 219.58
Tatal non-current liabilities 9,532.78 10,765.96
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 13 (b) 2,551.21 2,584 44
(i} Leasc liabilities 14 (b) 118.02 108.9%
(iii) Tradc payables 18
Tolal outstanding dues ol micro enterprises and small enterprises 377174 22247
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 4,711.86 3,630.75
(iv) Other financial Jiabilitics 15 (b) 1,161.01 946,15
Other current liabilitics 17 (b) 449,28 1,823.32
Current Tax Liabilitics (Net) 19 227.07 -
Provisions 16 (b) 188.24 152.54
Total current Uabllities 9,784.43 9.46%.65
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,892.44 19,607.72

ue policies

The accompanying noles form an inlegral part of (hese financial statements.
As per our report of even date atlached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Charered Accountants

Menisha Parikh
Purtner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022
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For um.L,(m éuill'ofac.ﬂ'umd of Direetors of
?\‘Jnfvﬁnﬂ Hrudayalays Surgical Hospltal Private Limited

."- (Iff._. M h

2]
Dr, Dgl’éﬁnd Shftty
Director -~

DIN: 00252187

ﬂﬁcngalum
Dute: May 20, 2022

L
L
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Satish Belawsdi

s

Chief Finuncial Officer

Place: Mysore
Date: May 20, 2022
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Dr. Emmanuel Rupert
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Statement ©f Profit and Loss '

(T i ki)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year end2d

articuiar® No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 30,557.97 19,425,094
Other income 21 232.49 91.24
Total income (4) 30,790.46 19,517.18
EXPENSES
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 7,653.08 5,741.02
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments - (Increase)/Decrease 22, (44.46) 101.75
Employec benefit expenses 23 4,849.83 3,640.54
Professional fees to doctors 6,119.70 4,745.56
Other expensés 24 6,138.58 4,549 64
Expenses before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and exceptional items (B) 24,7158.73 18,784.51
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional iters and tax. (A-B) 6,073.73 732.67
Finance costs (C) 25 1,728.74 1,$18.07
Depreciation and amortisation cxpense (D) 26 1,593.4¢ 1.493 12
Total expenses (E) = (B+C+D) 28,038.93 22,195.70
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (F) = (A-E) 2,751.53 (2,678.57)
Exceptional items (G) 38 - -
Profit / (loss) before tax (H) = (F-G) 2,751.53 (2,678.52)
Iax expenses: 30

Curicnt Tax 616.75 -

Less: : MAT credit entitiement (106.82)

Deferred tax charge / (credit) - s
"Total tax exgenses (I) 509.93 -
Erofit / (loss) for the year (J) = (H-I) 2,241.60 (2,67R.52)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Ttes that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (40.26) (2.33)

Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of a foreign operations 0.78 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income ¢tax (K) (39.48) (2.53)
Total comptehensive income / (loss) for the year (J+K) 2,202.12 (2,681.05)
Earnings / (Loss) per share 34
Basic (%) 9.18 (11.42)
Diluted (%) 9.18 (11.42)
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Narayana Hruda)”'l“)'a Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Statement of Castr 0%

(T in Inkhs)

Particulurs

For the year ended
Muarch 31,2022

For the year ended
Mirch 31, 2021

Cash Mow from 0P ©Fling netivities

Profit/ (loss) afley 18% 2.241.60 (2,678.52
Adjustments :
Income tax expense 509.93 -
Depreciation and 8Mortisation expense 1,593.46 1,493.12
Interest income (63.96) (3.72)
Interest income fTOm financial asset at amortised cost (55.75) (50.81)
Grant Income (19.26) -
Property usage right 104,25 164.10
Provision for loss allowance 42924 (217.02)
Finance costs 1,728.74 1,918.07
Loss on sale/disposal of Property, plant and equipment 271 <
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 6,470.96 625.22
Changes in trade receivables (2,347.83) 766 48
Changes in inventorics (44.47) 101.74
Changes in loans, other financial assets and other assets 496.83 (614.50)
Changes in trade payables, other financials liabilitics and other liabilities 108.58 1,32234
Changes in provision 39.07 13.30
Cash generated from operations 4,723.14 2,214.58
Income taxes (paid) / refund received (net) [12:29) (28.54)
Net cnsh generated by operating activities (A) 4,710.85 2,186.04
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of Property, plant and equipment (including capital work- (1,282.74) (1,932.26)
in-progress and Intangible assets)
Consideration for businegs acquisition (refer note no 36) (2,187.90) (2,083 72)
Investment in bank deposit (2.00) (5.00)
Interest received 61.20 1.29
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (3,411.44) (4,019.69)
Cash flow from financing activities
- Repayment of long-term borrowings (533.17) (855.35)
Procceds of loan from a related party (refer note 33 b) 800.00 2,745.00
Repayment of loan to a related party (refer note 33 b) (850.00) (2,500.00)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 2,599.51
Interest and other borrowing costs (285.73) (388.89)
Payment of leasc liabilities (refer note 29) (159.89) (140.67)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (1,028.7%) 1,459.60
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 270.62 (374.05)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 11)* (759.03) (384 98}
Cash nnd cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) (488.41) (759.03)
Signdicant accounting pohicies
* Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafls that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management
Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31,2022
Non cash changes
As at Fair value/ As at
Particulars April 1,2021 Proceeds Repayment other changes March 31, 2022
Long-lerm borrowings (including current maturities) 3,363.33 800.00 (1383.17) - 2,780.16
Leasc liabilities 685.65 - (159.89) 50.91 576.67
Total liabilities from linancing activitics 4,048.98 800.00 (1543.06) 50.91 3,356.83
Reconcilistion of liabilities from financing nctivities for the year ended March 31,2021
Non cash changes
Asat Fair value/ As at
Particulars April 1,2020 Proceeds Repayment other changes March 31, 2021
Long-tenn borrowings (including current maturities) 3,973 68 2,745.00 (3355.35) - 3,363.33
Lcasc liabilities 76751 = (140,67) 5881 685.65
Total liabilities from financing activities 4,741.19 2,745.00 {3496.02) 58.81 4,048.98

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemenits
As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Monisha Parikh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

For and on huhh&a’l{ the Board of Directors of

Narayana Hrud

Dr. D
Direet
DIN: ()252187

vi P:’ﬁ\snd hetty <

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

Pt ¥
= Snllsh Belawadi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mysore
Date: May 20, 2022

/gnrgi:nl Hospital Private Limited

3_/\\/~E’_i

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert
Managing Director
DIN : 07010883

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

Ya_
\.\_C\ e
Shnsimnku S Velankar =WRGICA™
Company Secretary .q,‘-\‘yr"—‘-—\‘\
3 d‘

Place: Bengaluru __:“’ j\
Date: May 20,2022 |5 i

=1 Bangalore ©

2\ =

=

\,-‘-,I\. ,-

/

;
l-.

iy & VI’\'* n '.‘//



NAarayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Company overview
Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on October 11,
2010 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, letting,
Mmanaging, and maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all discipline of medicine and
Wwithout limitation to run and administer healthcare schemes.

2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements

2.1. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies

Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements werc authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
May 20, 2022.

Details of the Company’s accountiné policies are included in Note 3.

2.2 Going concern
The Financial statements have been drawn up on a going concern basis in view of the support letter
received from Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited, the Holding Company confirming their continued financial
support to the Company to enable it to continue its operations and settle its obligations as and when they
become due over the next twelve-month period.

2.3. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in ¥ in lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise
stated.

2.4. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value

of defined benefit obligations

2.5. Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to acco
estimates are recognised prospectively.

PE K
A o Y,
\\: YN+ 032~

{\

/

r

TR

>
LY

N



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 27 - Assessment of contingent liabilities and commitments

Note 29 - Leases

Note 37 - Financial instruments

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2022, is included in the following notes:

Note 30- recognition of deferred tax assets

Note 31 - measurement of defined benefit obligation; key actuarial assumptions
Note 4 - useful life of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets
Note 6, 7, 10, 11 and 37 - recognition of impairment of financial assets

2.6. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:
— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
Note 37 — financial instruments

3. Significant accounting polices

3.1. Financial instruments

4. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fai
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisitio
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
b. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost
. FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets that arc held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows.

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features.

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse

features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value
of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For trade and other
payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates fair value
due to short maturity.

¢. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

d. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




NAarayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
3.2 Inventories

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments are valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale, the net realizable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net
realizable is made on an item-by-item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for value
added tax wherever applicable, applying the first in first out method.

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities of the Company are
segregated. Bank overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalents as they form an integral
part of an entity’s cash management.

3.5. Revenue recognition
Revenue from operations

Revenue from medical and healthcare services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related
services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to
the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date
to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients.

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the
customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be
derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection.

‘Unbilled revenue’ represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the
balance sheet date. *Unearned revenue’ comprises billings in excess of earnings.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss.

6(3
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N4arayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation, and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies,
freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed asset are added
to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset,

Depreciation and amortization

The Company depreciates property, plant, and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired under business combination are
amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and term of agreement. The estimated useful lives of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Building 60 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Medical equipment 13 years
Office equipment 5 years
Other equipment including air conditioners 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 5 years
Computers 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted appropriately.

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based
on the internal technical assessment and these useful lives are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of
the Compariies Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful life considered by management is lower.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date are recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant, and equipment not ready for
intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

3.7. Business combination, goodwill, and other intangible assets
(a) Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any
contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed-ATaGIca;
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
NOtes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
(b) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.

Amortisation method
The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the

industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Computer software 3 years
Customer Relationship 10 years

Amortisation method
Useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

3.8. Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Employce benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus, and ex-gratia. The undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an
expense as the related service is rendered by the employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government
administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have eamed and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed
periodically by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income
(OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes as a result
of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses in the
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on any leave accumulated in excess of sixty days
or on termination of employment. Since the employee has unconditional right to avail the leave, the
benefit is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this
entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method.

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.10. Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time
in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or
after April 1, 2019.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement

date to the end of the lease term. /.,’0':{‘571“‘“
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension, or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leascs
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

3.11. Earnings/ (loss) per share

The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year.

3.12. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit and loss except
to the extent that is relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if
any, related to incoine taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted
by the reporting dates.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative tax

According to Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid over
and above the normal Income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding
assessment year for set-off against normal Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against
the entity’s normal income tax during the specified period.

3.13. Impairment

a. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:
— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer.

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise.

— itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except tor
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward- looking information.




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
trade receivables does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

b. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s rccoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligaticn.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

3.15 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

3.16 Standards Issued but Not Effective

On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022. This notification has resulted into amendments in the
following existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 1, 2022.

i. Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Ind AS

ii. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

iii. Ind AS 109 — Financial Instrument

iv. Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

v. Ind AS 37 ~Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

vi. Ind AS 41 — Agriculture

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the company’s
financial statements.
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11 Cash and bank balances (¥ 1 Inkhis)
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Cush on hand 1. 742
Balunce with banks
-In current accounts 397.08 137.69
408.27 145001
(b) Bunk balances other than wbove
i glegosiit guvmate fallis e matipe wihin |2 mesibb of this srpestiog Jate)® Lo Lo
Lug (R

* abive depusila aré restrictive as il portsing I margis money.

Fur the purpese of the statenwent of cush fNlows, cash and carh equivalents comprisc the following:

(@ in lakl)
Ainl Aval
Eiplintnys Marel 31, 3033 Mareh 31,20
Clush i Pirtiel e Jaz
Patence with banks
-In current acvounts 397.08 13769
50
Leat: flank uverdraft vised fist cush pFuipiees efir mite | 3001 (AL}
Cash and yash vaiidvalenis i the statyaiein o sash fons |7y
12 (s)_Fapuity shurs capltal (T 1m baktia)
Aswtl Asal
Particulany March 31, 2022 March 31, 2024
Authorlsed
2,50,00.000 cquity shares (previous year: 2,50,00,00 equity shares) of’ 2 10 ench 2,500 00 2,500 00
Issued, subscribed snd paid up
242,.29,900 {previou year: 24028 706) equiny shares of ¥ 10 sach, fully paidup 2,442 59 L2
2441080 144180

(1) Recancilintion of the equlty sharex outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of (he year:
(@ in Lahhs, exoepl wn il shiares)

As at Murch 31, 2022 Au st March 31, 2021
Particularc .
Numher of shares Amnunt Number of shares Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2.44,25,900 244259 2,27,48 800 2274 k8
Shares issed during the year - . 16,77,100 16771
Shaces outaiagabing ot the cnd wlilie year 2,44.25.900 244259 2,44,25.900 244259

(i) Rights, preferences and reatrictions attached fo equlty sheres
The Compary has a single class of eyuity sharcs referred 10 s ¢ (uity shares huving » nominal value of 2 10 cuch Accordingly. ull cyity sharcs runk equally with regaid 10 dividend und shaze in the Companys residual asscts. Fach holder nf
cquity shares is entitlent Lo one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declarcd from time to time. The disidend proposcd by the Brard of Directurs is subject to the appranal of the sharchalders n the ensuing Annual
Crencral Meeting '

In the event of liquidation of the Conpany, the holders of equity sharcs will be entitled 10 reccive remairing assets of the Company, ailer distribution of all ial wrounts. The distribulion will be in proportion Lo the nunber of equiiy shares

held by sharchotders

(tli) Shsrex beld by lolding Company

{8 i dakha, wurepst ms ulf shares)
As sl Murch 31, 2022 Aval March 11, 2621
Particulars
Number of sheres Amount Number of shares Amouni
liquily shares of € 10 each fully paid up held by
-Narayana Limited 244,285,894 21259 2.44,25.894 244259

(1) Particulars of sharcholders holding mure thau 5% equlty shures:

Particulers

ARt March 31, 1022
Nuitisher of slerres * lldbisig

As i Myrch 31, 2021
Mutber of sharee®

228504

Sarsiara Houdeataya Lisilied 24428 4% Lo N o el
* These cxcluden 6 shares held by regintered sharcholders holding on behalf of beeficial shareholder i,e. Narayans Hrudayalaya Limited

{¥) The Company has not bought back any shates during the period of five years immedintely preceding the last balance sheet daic.
Further, the Company has 1ot issucd any shares for consideration uiher than cash during the period of five years immedintely preceding the lust balance shect date

(¥l) Shareholding of promater
Shestes et by prosssces o4 ot Maseh 31, 3027

% Change durlag the

Promoter name No of shares % of tolal shares il
Narsywna Hrudayslaya Limited 2.4,25,K94 99.9999%% 000
Dr. Devi Prasd Shetty® L 0.000004* 000"
Shukuntels Sheiy® ] 0.000001%y O,
Vircs Prasad Shetty* ] 0 0000 000%
Dr. Varun Shetty* I 0.000004% 000%
. Ancth Sheny® 1 0.000004%, 0.00%

* These shares src held by registered sharcholders holding on behalf of beneficial sharcholder  ¢. Narayana | lrudoynlays Limited




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surglcal Hosplta Private Limited
Notes Lo the fMsncinl statements for the year ended March 11, 2022 (contlaued)

12 [b) Othir Equbiy T In lakdnd
Avwl Avat
Pativeliry Sirch 31 13 Maryh 31
Heservies snd surphn
Securltles premium
At (he commencement of the year 11,268 40 9,033 60
Add: Securities premium on issue of equity sharcs during the year - I 243180
At the end of the year [IRCEEL LiAss40
Retained carnings
At the commencement of the year (14,492,86) (11.414.34)
Add: P'rofit / (lass) after tax (rensferred from statement of profit and loss 2160
At the end of the year {12, 261.26)
ther Comprehensive ncome
At the commencemait of the year (4202)
Add: Addition during the year (40.26)
At the end of the yrar (82.28)

Fureign currency Irunslation reserve
A1 the epmmiencemens of {he yrar . T
Movement during the vear

At the end of the yoar =
AN IR
Sceurities premium
Sccuritics premium is used 10 record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with tl¢ provisions of i Compaaics Act, 2013
Retained earnings
Retaitkd camings represents prior your urdisiributed earnings / scvumulated losses
Other Comprebensive Inzome
 Cher Comprehensive Income represents actuwarish gain o loss of re-mewsureracnt of defined benefits obligation
Forelgn currency translation reserve
The foreign cwrrency tanslation rescrve has arisan on acowat of Uanslution of financis! statements / infornulion af fovcign hrunch in aceordanee svith Iid AS- 21 The Effects ol choapes in Fncign Evchange Rates
13 Borvawings [ in Lkt
Tartioulans Asnt Aswt
Mharch 31, 1632 Mlupely 31, 3021
(2) Non-current
Secured
Term loans
From banks (refer nole | ) 1125 63 (LA
1.125.63 1.663.03
(h) Current
From parties ofher than related porties
Secured
Current naturitses of loag-tenm barrowings with banks 73453 71030
Bank overdrafts ( refer note 11) K96 68 90414
From related paries (refer note 33)
Unsecured
Lavena wepayhle oo demant ¢ pefir e 1) a31itio azi
185121 FEITRE)
Fexm Juan Crim banks ©
Detatls of repsyment ternus, Interest 1nd maruricy | Nwivre of seenrlty

Securet vin ruwtgage of fitle dewdds vn *he
£i7 [T 1 Lown from 11SDC 2 3 1190 00 lakha (previous year : T 1700 00 nkba) repayable in 7 quanterly instaliaents from scpemting date. Infercet is churged @ o §0% p o {previous year 7 (%) | iminesble progrerty of Nataya Huspiiels: Privie
Lamned

(i) | Term luan frum Yes Bank : R 244 .40 lukhs (presious year: 2 252 85 lakhs) repayable in 25 quarirly instalments, Interest is charged @ & 60%s pa (previous yar : § S0%)

sive churge o Movable Fived wuels (presa L
and fulere) and current assels ol the horiew e
(present und fnlure) excluding (hose charged 1o any
oiher Jender/venclor and thase charge | 10 Yes Bank
LC facilities, corporate guaraniec and security [rom
(¥) |Term loan from Yes Bank : T 65 21 Iakhs (previous year: T 67 47 lakhs) repayable in 25 quarterly innalments, Interest is charged @ B.60% pa (previous year : 4 S0%) Nwayann 1rmdayalay Limited (Hotding Company)

{557 | Ferm Toun from Yes Bank : 2 221,56 lakhs (previous year: 229 2) Jakis) repaysble in 25 quarterly instalmicns, Interest is clarged ¢ # 60% pa (previous year : §.50%) E:

1159 |Term loan rom Yen Bank : T 86 54 lokhs (previous year: ¥ 89.53 [skha) repaysble in 25 quartcrly instafiments. Intecest s charged (@ 4.60% pu (previous year : 8 50%)

(vi) [ Term loan from Yea Dank : ¥ 52 45 lakhs (previous year: T 54 27 Takhs) repayable in 25 quarterly instulments. Interest is charged @ B.60% a (previous year : K 50%)

[ Overdrafi facilities and workdng capital loan from benli :

(i) Owcrdrahl facility from Yes Bunk Limited & 896 68 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 504,14 Iskhs) curry intereat vute o) 30% ahove the 3 month MCLR (previous year :0 30% above the 3 mon(hs MCLR). 10 be paid on monthly basis It ix secured by
current assets {both present and future), subscrvient charge vn mavable fixed wssets and corporale guaranice nf Narmyais Hrudayalays Limited Statements of current usseta Gilal by the Company with ils nankcrs ere in agrecment with bonks of
sinraply

(i) Loun from Narayans lrudaysluya Limitcd: € 920 00 Inkhs (previous year & 970 010 Iakhs) frefer note 33 (¢)]




Narayana lirudayalayn Surgical lospltal Privete Limited
Noles 1o the fInanclul statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022 (contimied)

14 Lenne lahillin (T in Bakhiey
. Ai st Avat
Particulers Margh ¥y, 2022 Blarek 31, 2081
(8) Noa-current
Opening Lease libility HH5 65 76751
Additions during thy purivd v .
Finance cost scerued during the period 091 58]
Lease puyment 1159 19) (140,67)
Closing Lense libilit: 57067 BKE.H%
Less: Current lease liability thieoh (e Sny
458,68 576.47
(b) Current
Lesise [lalilily 118,02 108 9%
118,02 104,98
1% Other Mnancial lisbilides AT I lakdis)
Asat Arut
b March 31, 112 Mbapely 3, 2031
(1) Non—current
To parties other than related parties
Liability towards business acquisition L5091 R 60
Creditars for cupilal gonds 45 59 6322
7,554.63 RI74.82
{b) Current
To parties other than related perties
Liability townrds business acquisition §02.57 N2 87
Interest necrued but not due on borrewings nmn 5ol
Deposits Reccived ] 1250
Crediturs for capita) gody 32647 126 27
1.180.01 (TN
The Company's exporure to liquidity risk and currency risk sre disclosed in nole 17
16 Frovhisns (% in Likha)
As ut Avat
Farflentirs Mareh 31, 3022 Marghd], 3010
(n) Nomturrent
Pravisien for empleyee benefite (Refer Note 31)
Gruwity 174,29 13144
17429 131.44
{b) Current
Provision for emplayce benefita (Refer Note 31)
Graluity 4175 ELEL)
— o Cemperaatad fhuenies 146,49 12:05:
188.24 152.
17 Other lin [LATAEN)
Asat Asut
TarEeors Sbareh 3. 2043 Sacch 31201
(=) Nop-cnrrent
Deferred grant - Ohers * hLET) .
219.58 -
(b) Current
Tv parties uther than related parties
Contract liabilities 2872 A210
Balunces due 1o sluluiory’ govemnment suthorities 142,65 11278
eferred granl - Others * 2195 .
Uncanied revennie (refer pute 19) 45,68 161816
Ulher liablies [ nis
a0 142032
Semumary of the grast reechvd hy thy Company i £% In lakha)
[anec . -
Add: Grants during the year 26079 -
L Walensed bu proit unil loss 1934 .
Lloslng Babanee P 1A -
Penn Cirmyrt 21955
Cirvert MK -
* During the financia) year 2021-22, the Company had reccived capital grants [rom varivus corpurates mnounting 1o € 260 79 lakhs for purchase of pruperty, plant & cquipment us agrecd. The Company his recognized this grant as defereed income
a1 fair value which is being smortised over the useful life of the fixed assels in propertion in which the related depreciation is recognizcd
(8 Truile puysbiles (T I Dakha}
Asal Asat
i Mareh 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 23621
Total ing dues of micro iscs and small ises (Refer Nole 32) NN 4y
Total strianeling dues of rediturs gther than micew s wsl] sniemeises ER IR
£ UN% 80
The Comyany's exposure to currency and ligtsidity risks relatedl fu trode Eanble 1% Feclased in pate 7
Trade paysbiles ngelng schedule AT I Yakha)
Chutstumillng fur Tullowlang periuls lrum diee date of jnyments .
Partloulars Tetul
Nl Py * Less than | year 12 yeard -3 ywwrs Mo than 3 vears
As at Mareh 31,2022
) Undisputed-MSME 148 231.6% - o6 152 mn
b) Undispuied -Others ¥56 69 33 11232 2 319 4,70 %6
() Dispated dues - MSME - . ] .
(d) Disputed ducs - Others . . . . . .
Totsl 1,000.17 3,543.62 13232 3304 379.45 5.089.60
As st March 3J, 2021
1) Undisputed-MSME 10295 n7.7 = 015 1.66 2247
b} Undispuled -Orhers 701,94 2,243.70 23653 19973 24645 161075
(c} Disputed dues - MSME - 5 3 . . :
() Disputcd dues - Others . ~ . . . -
Total 19009 XTI 21051 19908 2insy sty
*Includes provision for eapensey
19 Curreiit Tay Lishilithes (Noi} : T In bakfin}
]
Partheular Murrh 3 '!I;- Mprvdh 3, 203
Opening Balancs : :
Add: Current 1ax payuhle of the year 1675 -
Lens: ‘Tinen pmbd (3KT. M} .

2707 =




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

20 Revenue from operations (X in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Income from medical and healthcare services 18,346.60 13,400.49
Salc of medical consumables and drugs 7,669.61 6,011.43
Other operating revenuc:
Income from other healtlicare services (refer note 39) 4,511.76 802
30,557.97 19,425.94

Refer notes below

For the year ended

For the year ended

@) Catesorynl Chsme March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Cash * 14,117.02 11.250.42
Credit 16,440.95 8,175.52

30,557.97 19,425.94

*Includes receipts thorugh digital/electronic mode

(i} Nature of treatment

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2022 March 31,2621

In-patient 13,200.76 *10,095.03
Out-patient 5,145.84 331145
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 7,669.61 6,011.43
Other healtheare services 4,541.76 s.02
30,557.97 19,425.94

(iii) The revenuc from rendering Medical & Healthcare services and medical consumables and drugs satisfics ‘at a point in time’ r2cognition criteria as

prescribed by Ind AS 115

(iv) Revenue from medical and healthcare scrvices is net of rebates/ incentives/ discounts for the year ended March 31, 2021 amounting to T §,950.14

lakiis (Previous Year ¥ 4,889.91 lakhs).

(v) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 Mavch 31, 2621
Contract liabilities 238.72 62.1¢
238.72 2.0

(vi) Use of Practical expedients
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performarce obligations

The Company has applied the practical expedient with respect to non disclosure of information in cespect of remaining performance obligations
considering the fact that the company’s performance obligations, i.c. the treatment in casc of healthcare segment has an original expeeted duration

of one year or less.

21 Other income

(X in 1akhs}

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Particulars
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 9.85 372
- Income Tax Refund 54.11 -
Interest income from financial assct at amortised cost 55.75 50.81
Grant Income 19.26 -
Foreign exchange gain 51.85 -
Miscellaneous income 41.67 36.7
232.49 91.24




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments - (Increase)/Decrease

23

24

X in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 410.86 512.61
Inventory at the end of the year 455.32 410.86
(44.46) 101.75

Employee benefits expense ® in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,562.65 3,430.17
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 193.80 166.22
Staff welfare expenses 93.38 50.15
4,849.83 3,646.54

Other expenses
(X in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Hospital operating expenses
Rent 339.35 379.21
Paticnt welfarc expenses 60.80 56.55
Power and fucl 828.73 689.93
Hospital general expenses 443.40 366.01
House keeping expenses 917.04 748.46
Medical gas charges 29.99 41.25
Biomedical wastage expenses 7.81 6.54
Repairs and maintenance
- Hospital equipments 433.12 400.68
- Buildings 199.40 122.54
- Others 471.96 389.85
Total (A) 3,731.60 3,201.02
Administrative expenses
Traveling and conveyance 296.26 117.29
Security charges 223.32 190.48
Printing and stationery 99.86 94.70
Rent 248.39 22222
Advertisement and publicity 639.20 592.58
Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 54.26 121.76
Telephone and communication 70.05 68.18
Bank charges 91.57 58.30
Insurance 21.44 14.65
Rates and taxes 79.91 44.78
Foreign Exchange Loss 20.34 16.11
Provision for loss allowance and doubtful advances 429.24 (217.02)
Provision for doubtful advances 63.77 -
Bad receivables written off 11.26 -
Subscription & Books & Periodicals 17.47 15.97
Loss on sale/disposal of Property, plant and equipment 2.71 -
Miscellaneous expenses 37.93 8.62
Total (B) 2,406.98 1,348.62
Total (A+B) 6,138.58 4,549.64




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2022 (continued)

(i) Payment to auditors*

X in lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Particulars
As an auditor
(i) Audit fee 8.00 8.00
(ii) Other attest services 3.00 5.50
11.00 13.50
*excluding GST
X in lakhs)

25 Finance costs

For the year ended

For the ycar ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expense cn financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

- term loans feorn Lanks 159.95 22143
- bank overdraft 47.95 96.53
- others 34.59 63.81
Interest expense on lease liabilities 50.91 58.81
Interest expensc on business acquisition 1385.34 1,477.49
1,728.74 1,918.07

(X in lakhs)

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 1063.92 962.75
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 439.47 440.30
Depreciation of Right of use Assets (refer note 5) 90.07 90.07

1,593.46 1,493.12




Naraysna Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the inanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

27 Contingen liabilitics and commitments
{I) Contingen liabilities

The Company does not have any contingent liability as on March 31, 2022 (previous year: nil}

(li) Commltments

Cstimated of contracts ining to be d on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for amounts to T 1727,12 lakhs (March 31,2021: % 1.28 lakhs)

28 Scgment reporting
Operating Segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108") cstablishes standards for the way that public business enteiprises report information abeul operating scaments and related disclosures about producis anl
services, geographic arcas, and major customers, Bosed on (he "management approach” vs defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segmenis are to be reporied in & manner consistent with the intemal reporting
provided to the Chicl Operaling Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM cvaluates the Cempany’s performance and allucales resources on overall basis. The Company's sole operating segmen is therefore
‘Mcdicul and 11calthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no ndditional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statements,

Geographical information
Geographical informalion analyses the Company's revenue and non-current assets by the Company's country of demicile (i.c. India) and other countrics, In presenting the geographical informiatien, segraenl
revenue has been based on the geogruphical location of the customers and segment assets which have been bascd on the geagraphical loeation of the assets,

(i) Revenue from aperations (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Fur the vear ended  For the yenr ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India 26,016.21 19,425.94
Rest of the world - St Lucia 4.541.76 -
30.557.97 19.425.94
(1i) Nen-current assets * (X in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
India 13,725.02 14,335.58
Rest of the world - St Lucia - -
13,725.02 14,335.5%
*Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assels :
29 Leases
Transition

"The Conipany has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’, effective annual reporting perind beginning April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 — Leases snd refated interpretation and guidance. The Company has
applied the standard to its leases, using the modified retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard, recognized on the dale ol initial application {April I, 2019)
Companative information has not been restated.

{ at the i 1 borrowing rate and the right of use asset at ils carying amount as if the

Accordingly, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease p
standard had been applicd since the commencement date ol the Icase, but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rute at the daic of initial application.
The following is a v of practical expedi: ¢lected by the Company on initial applicatlon:

Applied a single discount rte lo a portfolio of leases with bly similar ch istics in similar ic envi
Treated leases with remaining Icase term of less than 12 months as if they were “short term Jeases”

Applicd the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liubilitics for leases of low value assets

Application of hindsight, in determining the lease term if the contract conlains options to exiend or terminate the lease

On transition to Ind AS 116, the Company recognised right-of-use assets amounting to ¥ 702,56 lakhs, related accumulated depreciation amounting to nil, lease liabilities amounting to ¥ 805,89 lakhs and T
103.33 lakhs in relained eamings as at April 1, 2019. The Company hos discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate as at April 1, 2019, which is 8% for measuring the lease

liability.
{1y The following is the break-up ol current and non-current ficasc liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31,2021 (Tin tukhis)
Particul As al As 1
artiefars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Current lease liabilities 11802 108 93
Non-current lease liabilities 458 65 $76.67
576.67 685.65
(it) The following is the movement in the lcasc liabilities during the year cnded March 31, 2022 and March 31,2021 {Tin lakhs)
Particul As at Asat
artiediars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Lease Tiahility 685.65 767.51
Finance cost accrued during the period 5091 588!
Lease puyment (159.49) 140,67}
576.67 685,65
(iii’ The lable below provides delails regarding the | ities of rental payments as of March 31, 2022
(T in lakhs)
Particulars L“;:::" i 1-2years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Contractunl rental 1 159.89 126,00 9410 HR1 4%
159,89 126.00 594.10 8348
The table below provides details regarding the 1 maluritics of rental payments as of March 31, 2021
< In lakhs)
Less than [ T
- - 5
Particulars yeit 1-2 years 2-5 years More than § years Totnl
Contructunl rental payments 159.40 159.89 187.49 63610 1.143.37
159.89 159.59 187,49 636,10 1.143.37

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

30 Income tax

(9) Amount recognised in statement of profit and luss (T in Iakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Current tax
-Current ycar* 616.75 -
-Prior years = =
MAT credit cntitlement** : (106.82) L
Deferred tax charge/ (credit), net
Ongination and reversal of temparary diflerences = =
_Iux expense for the year 509.93 -

*Significant judgments are involved i determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expecled to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. The provision for tax for the year ended
March 31,2022 & March 31, 2021 have been made duly taking into consideration the requirements under Appendix C to Ind AS 12, including the Management's assessment of the probability of acceptance
of the Company’s tax posilions by the taxation / appellate authorities

(b} Reconcilintion of effective tax rate (T in lalhs)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Profit / (loss) before tax 2,751.53 (2,678.52)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (Current year | 7 47% and Previous Year Nil) 480.69 s
Tax effect of:
Non-deduclible tax expenses 13.41 -
Others 1583 -
Tax expense for the veur 509.93 =

{c) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Delerred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the followings:
(T in lakhs)

Particulars — Asat
1 March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful reccivables (14.23) 550
Provision for gratuity - 2892 22.63
Provision for compensated absences 17.12 1418
Cn brought forward loss 1,193.60 1,807 07
Provision for slow & non moving inventory 352 0.81
Bonus pavable 791 791
Unabsorbed Depreciution 97.98 97.98
Total deferred tax asset 1,334.82 1,956.08
Deferred tax liability
tixeess ol depreciation on fixed asset under Income Tax Act 1961 over deprecintion under Companies Act: (952.69) (BIL.77)
Total deferred tax linbility (992.69) (B11.77)
Deferred tax asset {net) 342.13 1,144,31

Net deferied tax asscls has not been recognised because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits thereon

MAT CREDIT

**During the FY 2021-22, the company has lower tax as per normal provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and so it was liable to pay tax as per Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) under section 115 JB of
Income Tax Act, 1961, llence, the company has recognized T 106.82 lakhs as MAT credit entitlement which forms part of Deferred tax assets as per Ind AS 12 As per Section 115 JAA of Income Tax
AcL 1961, MAT assels can be carried forward to 15 years, subject to carlier utilization by the company




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

31 Employce benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the
plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits.

The amount recognised as an expensc towards contribution to Provident Fund and Employec State Insurance for the year aggregated to I 157.26 lakhs (previous year: ¥
132.30 lakhs).

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous
service, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by a trust formed for this purpose
and is managed by Kotak Life Insurance. The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined berefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation
carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of profit and
loss. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gatuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date.

A. Bascd on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial

statements as at balance sheet date:

(X in lakhs)
. As at As at
RErtlEulars March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Dcfined benefit obligations liability 263.82 209.82
Plan assets 47.78 49.93
Net defined benefit liability 216.04 159.89
Liability for compensated absences 146.49 124.09
Total employee benefit liability 362.53 283.98
Non-current 174.29 131.44
Current 188.24 152.54
. Reconciliation of net defined bencfit (assets) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components .
i) Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligation (T in lakhs)
Particulars . L
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation as at I April 209.82 184.07
Benefits paid
-By the fund (5.77 (3.00)
-By the Company (20.50) (10.69)
Current service cost 30.92 28.50
Interest cost 7.94 8.0¢
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income
-changes in demographic assumptions 5.33 (0.21)
-changes in financial assumptions (6.69) 18.97
-cxperience adjustments 4271 {1590
Defined benefit obligations as at 31 March 263.82 209.82
ii) Reconciliation of present values of plan assets (X in lakbs)
Particulars As at As 2t
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Plan assets at beginning of the year 49.93 49.76
Interest income 232 2.66
Employer contribution 0.15 ¢.19
Bencfits paid (5.77) (3.00)
Adjustment to opening fair value - .
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 1.15 0.32
Plan assets at the end of the year 47.78 49.93
Net defined benefit liability 216.04 159.89
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31 Employee benefits (continued)

C. i) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss ® in Jakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 30.92 28.50
Interest cost 5.62 5.42
36.54 33.93
i) Remeasu ts recognised in other comprehensive income (T in lukhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 221
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 41.41 TT783
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (1.15} {N.32)
40.26 2.53
D. Plan Assets
Plan assets comprises of the following: (T in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul
e March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Pooled assets with an insurance company 47.18 49.93
47.78 49.93
The nature of asscts allocation of plan asscts is in government securitics and debt instruments of high credit rating.
E. Defined Benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighte averages):
Principal actuarial assumptions As at As
p P Mareh 21, 2022 March 31, 2521
Upte Upue

Altrition ratc

Discount rate

Mortality rate

Future salary increases

Level 6= 39%, Level 7
and above = 57%
5.41%-5.54%

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

7.90% for First Year
6% thereafter

Level 6 = 43%, Level 7
and above = 35%
4.41%-4.64%

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

7.90% for First Year

6% thereafter

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

As of March 31, 2022, the plan asscts have been invested in insurer managed funds for Dharamshila unit and the expected contributions to the fund during the year ending
Marck 31, 2023, is approximately ¥ 45.99 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 42.11 lakhs).

Maturity profile of defined benefit abligation X in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
1st following year 87.74
2nd following year SIS
3rd following ycar 49.17
4th following year 3292
5th following year 27.06
Year 6 to 10 62.10
Above 10 years 27.06

ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the reievant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below.

® in lakhs)
i March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.5% movement) (2.89) 2.95 (2.64) 2.71
Future salary increases (0.5% movement) 291 2.87) 2.23 (1.87)
Attrition rate (0.5 % movement) (0.63) 0.61 (0.61) 0.62
Mortality rate (0.10% movement) (0) (0.02) 0.01 -

Although the analysis docs not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it docs provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions
shown.

HARTERED

COUNTANT
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32 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Miristry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issucd an officc memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which rccominends that the Micro and Small Entcrpﬁsc§
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs Memorandum Number as allocated afier filing of the Memorandum, Accordingly, the disclosure
in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2022 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the
Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘The MSMED Acl’) is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for intcrest from any supplier.

X in lakhs)
As at As at
rticul
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers
as at the end of the year
-Principal 371.52 22233
-Interest 0.22 0.14
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the
MSMED Act : = -
The amount of payments made to micro and small suppliers
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year; B )
The amount of interest duc and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the - -
interest specified under the MSMED Act;
Th t of interest d ini id at
he amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 0.22 0.14

end of each accounting ycar

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest ducs as above arc actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED Act
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33 Related party disclosures

(a) Details of related parties

—

ru of relationship

Name of related parties

nterprise havinat control ovet the Company

Marayand Hrudavalaya Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert-Managing Director

Ravindra KS - Chief Financial Officer (till February 9, 2022)

Satish Belawadi - Chief Financial Officer (w.c.f. March 29, 2022)

Hemish Purushottam - Company Sceretary (till October 11, 2021)

Shashanka Shankara Velankar - Company Secretary {w.c f. November 10, 2021)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Holding Company

Dr Devi Prasad Shetty - Chairman & Whole time Director

Dr Emmanuel Rupert - Managing Director and Group CLO

Viren Prasad Shetly- Whole Time Director and Group COO

Kesavan Venugopalan- Chief Financial OfTicer (till November 12, 2021)
Sandhya Jayaraman - Chiel Financial Officer (w.¢ f Decemnber 8, 2021)
Snidhar S- Company Sccretary

Fellow subsidiaries

Narayana Institute for Advanced Rescarch Private Limited (NIARPL)
Narayana Hospitals Private Limited (NI1PL)

Narayana Health Institutions Private Limited (NIIIPL)

Narayana Cayman Holdings Ltd (NCHL) (till March 31, 2021)

Meridian Medical Rescarch & Hospital Limited (MMRHL)

Narayana Holdings Private Limited (NHDPL) (Subsidiary of NCHL)
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospilals Private Limited (NVDSIIPL)
NII Ilealth Bangladesh private Limited (Subsidiary of NI{DPL)

Health City Cayman Islands Limited (HCCI)

Narayana Health North America LLC

Entity under control/ joint control of KMP/KMP of Holding
company and their relatives

Amaryllis ITealthcare Private Limited

Hrudayalaya Pharmacy

Charmakki Infrastructures

Thrombosis Rescarch Institute(TRI)

Narayana Hrdayalaya Foundation (NHF)
Mazumdar Shaw Medical Foundation (MSMF)
Narayana Health Academy Private Limited(NHAPL)
Asia Heart Foundation (AHT)

Associate of Holdine Company

TriMedx India Private Limited (TriMedx)

(b} Transactions with related party during the year ended March

31,2022

(T in lnkhs)

Entity under control/ joint control of

Key Management

Transactions Enterprise having control over the company| KMP/KMP of !lulding company and Personnel (KMP) Total
their relatives
Lease reatal expense
o 49.56 - - 49,56
Narayana llrudayalaya Limited
y: yalaya Limi (46 41) - . (46.41)
Narayana Hrudayalaya Foundation - LI ) ey
- (86.34) = (86 34)
Total 49.56 86.34 135.90
(46.41) (86.34) (132.75)
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment
: 008 - 008
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited
rayana Hrudayalaya Limite (64 05) } = (64.05)
Unsecured loan taken
. 500.00 - - 50000
Nar Hrudayalaya Limited .
arayana Hrudayalaya Limite (2.745 00 - - (2.745,00)
Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited : 200i00 300:00
Total 500.00 300.00 - 800.00
(2,745.00) = (2.745.00)
Interest expenses
76.14 - 76 14
Naray: /a L
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 63 11) . : 63 11)
2 82
Metidian Medical Research & Hospital Limited §:2 K29
Toral 76.14 8.29 84.43
(63.11) - (63.11)
Repayment of unsecured loan
. 550.00 = - 550.00
N, avany . O i
a1ayana Hrudayalaya Limiled (2.500.00) . . (2 500,00)
Meridian Medical Research & llospital Linuted . 300100 ) e
Total 550.00 300.00 - 850.00
{2.500.00) - - (2,500.00}
Repayment of interest on unsecured loan
Na Hrudayalaya Limited : i ) ;
ravana Hrudayalaya Limite (59.801 . J (59.80)
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Eimbursnmmll of expenses

- 23.37 - ~ 2337
\J ) J =
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (7.48) = ‘ 4 (7.48)
Teleradivlogy Cost
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 1301 . ‘ _ XS
(11.33) - - (11.33)]
Issue of equity shares
Narayana B imi ) - B B
arayana Hrudayalaya Limited (2_599_51)| ) ] . (2.599.51)
Corporate gunrantee given by holding company
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 1:000.00 -1 . 00000
yana yalaya L. (3.500.00) - | - (3.500.00)
Purchase of medicnl bles and drups
5 - 66.62 - = 66 62
Narayana llrudayalaya Limiled (6197 . ) (63.97
. . L - 100.14 < 10014
Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited ) (112.10) _ (112.10)
Narayana Vaishio Devi Specialty 1Tospitals Private Limited - 0.4l - 041
{NVDSHPL) - (0.22) - (0.22)
Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited (MMRIIL) . (0.59) N (0.59)
Total 66.62 100.55 - 167.18
(63.97) (112.91) =. {176.89
Call Centre Service
L 7833 - £ 7833
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (32.25) N ] (32.25)
Sale of medical bles and drugs
] - 39.61 . - 3961
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (1128) R a (11.28)
. . . N . . - 3228 - 3228
: ais
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty ITospitals Private Limited 1 (2532) i (2532)
Total 39.61 32.28 - 71.88
(11.28) (25.32) = (36.60)
Lab outsourcing Service e
. ; : 102.54 = 102 .54
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (72.85) R o (72.85)
. . - 53.16 = 53.16
.a" " P
r ayana Vaishno Devi Specialty [lospitals Private Limited d (16.19) g (16.19)
Toral 102.54 53.16 - 155.70
) (72.85) (16.19) - (89.04)
Short-term employee benefits*
% - 7909 79 (4
A RS
Ravindra RS _ = (R275) (62.75)
L - 1182 1182
>,
[lemish Purushottam i (1733) 0733
Shashanka Shankara Velankar ) ) ge? 6,69
Satish Belawad) ) } 0.5 013
Total - - 97.75 97.75
- - (80.08) {80.08)

Figures 1n brackets are for the previous year
Note:

The temuneration to KMP does not include the provisions made for graluity and compensated absences, as they are obtamed on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

*The amounts are determmed as per section 17(2) of the Income tax Act, 1961 read with the related Rules

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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33 Related party disclosures (continued)

¢) The balances reccivable from and payable to related parties

(¥ in lakhs)

Entity under control/ joint
Bal : Enterprise having control | control of fellow subsidiary, Total
aanee over the company KMP/KMP of Holding
company and their relatives
Trade payables
Narayana FHrudayalaya Limited (j??g; : (2??2;
. . L - 4.80 4.80
Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited " (2.59) (2.59)
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited (NVDSHPL) ) 3% 38.96
Y P prt : (14.55) (14.55)
Meridian Mecdical Research & Hospital Limited (MMRHL) B e 0:59
i 659.87 44.35 704.22
Total (411.55) (17.14) (428.69)
Trade receivables
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Privatc Limited (NVDSHPL) i} (2.60) (2.60)
Corporate guarantee given / released by the holding company ( Net)
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (g’igggg) : (gigggg)
Unsccured loan given by the holding company
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (3?]888) i (Ziggg)

Figures m brackets are for the previous year

Note:

(2) No amount in respect of related parties have been written off/back or provided for during the year.

(b) Related party relationships have been identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.
(c)The terms and conditions of the transactions with related parties were no more favourable than those available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be
available, in respect of similar transactions with other than rclated entitics on an arm’s length basis.
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34

35

36

Earnings/(Loss) per share

Basic and diluled loss per share

The caleulation of basic and diluted carnings/ (loss) per share for the yenr ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 was based on profit / (Isss) attributable to cauity

shareholders of T 2241.60 lakhs (March 31, 2021: T (2678.52) lakhs) and weighted average number of equity share outstanding 2.44,25,900 (March 31, 2021

2,34,57.432). 2
(& in lnkhs, except no of shayes)

For the ycar ended  For the year ended

LELCENTE i Maich31,2022  March31, 2021
Profiv/ (Joss) aller tax 2,241.60 (2,678.52)
Tolal no of shares outstanding 2,44,25,900 227,48, 800
Effect of shares issued during the year - 708,632
Weighted uverage number of equity shares (basie/diluted) for the year 2,44.25,500 23457432
Basic and diluted camnings/(loss) per share (%) 9.18 (11.42)

(Nominal value per share X 10)

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to mair:tain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1o sustein future development of the business,
Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt (o 10al equily ratio,

For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comptise ol issued shure capital and all other cquity
reserves.

The capital structure as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 was as follows:
(T in lakhs)

Particulars Asizl st
) March 31, 2022 Mureh 31,2021
Tolul equity attributable (o the equity sharcholders of the Company 1,578.23 (626,89)
As a percentage of total capital 30% -1
Long-lerm borrowings including current maturitics 1,125.63 1,683.03
Shorl-lerm borrowings 2,55121 2,584.44
Total borrowings 3,676.84 4,267.47
As u percentage of total capital 70% 117%
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 5,252.07 3,640.58
Healtheare Service Agreement with Dharamshila Cancer Foundation and Rescarch Centre (DCFRC)
On March 31, 2017, Company entered into Healtheare Services Agreement ("Ap ") with DI hila Cancer Foundation and Research Centie ("Socicty™)

Accordingly, the Company has a control over the operations of Dharzmshila Hospilal and Rescarch Cenlre (“Hospital") and provide healtheure services using the
assels which arc owned by the socicty. The arrangement of the Company with the Seciety attracts the application of business combination as per IND AS103. The
Company commenced the provision of heallhrare services at the Hospital on 1st April 2017 ("Commencement Date"). The term of the Agreement is 25 yeus, which
the Parties may extend for a further period on such terms as may be mutually agreed. Neither Party shall have the right o terminate the Agreement before 10 vears of
the Commencement Date. The Hospital is renamed s "Dharamshila Narayana Superspeciality Hospital, A Unit of Dhuranishita Cancer Foundation And Research
Centre" as per the Agreement,

In terms of the Agreement, the Society is entitled 1o retain an annual revenue amount of T 1,800 lakhs per annum with an anrual cscalation of’ 8% during the term the
Company is in control of the operations of the Hospital. The fair value, applying the Discounted Cash Flow approach based on discount rute of 15.23% is determined
by discounting the estimated annual amounts of revenue which the Socicty is entilled to retain from the Commencement Date. The excess amount of such fair valuc
over the fair value of net assets of the Hospital, which the Company uses in exercise control over the operations of the Hospital, has been attributed lowards goodwill

The fair value accordingly has been attributed to use of the following asscis based on Management’s estimates:

(X in lakhs)
Componcnt Acquisition date fair
value
Property, plant and cquipmenl 3,576.81
Property usage right 1,639.36
Intangible asscts #,637.00
Total 9,853.17
Goodwill 790.00
Total purchase price 10,643.17

The intangible asscls arc amortised over a period of len years as per management’s estimate of its useful life, based on the life ever which economic bencefits arc
expected to be realized.

The goodwill amounting to T 790 lakhs comprises value of benefits of expected synergies, future revenue, future market developments, assembled workforce, ete

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to be deductible for fax purposes

The Company has paid an interest-free refundable security deposit amounting to T 1,000 lakhs to the Socicty as per the Agrecment. Sccurity deposit was discounted
and the differential was treated as prepaid rent and amortised over the lerm of the Agreement.

Refer note 38 regarding provision for impairment recognized in the books relating to the Dharamshila unit and the allocation of the same to the tangible und intangible
asscts of the Unit.
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37 Financlal instruments: Fair value and r'sk managements

A. Accounting clussification and fair values

(T in lakhs)
As at Mareh 31, 2022 Amortived cost Total
Financlal asscts
Trade receivables 4,406.81 4,406 .81
Cash and cash cquivalents 408.27 408.27
Bank balances olher than above 1.00 1.00
Other finanelal wasers 2,3531.36 125326
T.069.44 7,069.44
Financial nbllities
Borrowings 167684 3,676.84
Lease labilines 576 67 576.67
Irade payables 5,089,.60 5,089 60
Other financial liabilities H715.04 ¥,715.64
H 18,058.78 1R.058.78
(¥ In lakhs}
A at Mavch 31, 2021 Amaortiied cost Tatsl
Fingncin] assets
Trade regeivables 24RR 22 ¢ 2.48822
Cash and cash cquivalenls . ' - . 145,11 [ERR N
Bank balances other Lhan above 1.00 106G
Other financial assets - 2.665,79 - 2.665.7¢
. 5300.12 5.300.02
Financinl liabilities
Borrowings 426747 ' 426747
Leasc liabilitics 685.65 6R5.65
Trade poyables 3.853,22 3.85322
Other financial liabiliti 9,320.97 932097
18,1273 18,127.31

Measurement of falr values
The carrying value of all financial assets approximates the fair valuc,

B. Financlal risk management
The Company's activitics expose it o a variety of {inareial risks: credit risk. markel risk and liquidity risk.

(i} Risk management framework
The Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury dep 1t under policies app) d by the Board of Diractors. The Board supen ises overall risk management, as weii as pelicies
covering specilic areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and wse of finncial instruments

(ti) Credit risk N t
Creddit sk is the rivk that the counterpatty wilt not meet its obligetion under u financisl instrument or customer contrect, lending to Franciat loss, The credit risk arises m incipaliy from its opcrating
marily trade receivables) and from its investing acti including deposits with banks and financial nstitutions and other financial iastniments

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit linits and creditworthiness ol customers or: a conlinuous basis lo whom credit has been granted alter obaining necessiy anprovals for credt. The
collection from the trade receivables are ilored on & conti basis by the receivables teim,

The Company establishies an allowance tor credit loss thai repres Wls estimate of expected losses in respect of rade and ollier recen ables based on the past and the recent coilection (rerd. The
maximum cxposure 1o credit risk as al reporting dalc is primarily from trade reccivables amounting to ¥ 5,263 35 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ¥ 2,915,52 lakhs). The mosemcrt in ailowarce for credil
loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as foliows:

(T in Iakhe)

Allowance for eredit loss Lo pan
) March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Opening balance 42730 644,32
Expected credit loss recogmised / {reversed) 429214 (217,02)
Closing balance BS6.54 427.30

One Customers - Government of St, Lucia (GOSL) 14.86% accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31, 2022 and No single customer accourted for more than 10% of the revenue
s of March 31,2021

Caedit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited us the Compuny generally (ransacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings ussigned by international and domestic credit rating
ogencies,

(lily Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compuny will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabiities thitare scttled by delivering cash or asother financial asset, The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensi re, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidivy to meet its habilities when they are due, under both notinal aad stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company’s rputation, Ir: addition, the Company maintains fin¢ of c1edit as stated in Note 14,

The Company believes that the working capital is sulficient to meet its current requiremerts. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived

I'he table below provides details regurding the undiscounted contractuul maturities of significant finuncial liabilities as of March 31, 2022:
(% In lakhs)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-Syeard More than § years Total
Borrowings 2.551.21 58223 390.96 152.44 5.676.84
Lease liabilities 118.16 67.17 16.16 355.1% 576.67
I'rade payables 5,089.60 - - - 5,089.60
(Mher finangisl Habili 1.273.78 PRI EN I 443228 62.78 B,715.64

Total 9,032.75 3,596.20 4,859.40 570.40 18,058.75
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The table below provides details regarding the undiscounied contraclual maturities of significant (inancial liabilities as o March 31, 2021:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Lenn than 1 year 1+1vears 1-5 vears More than 5 years Total
Borrowings | B74.14 1,446.22 651.85 293.26 4,20747
Leasc liabilitics 108.98 118.02 90.58 368,07 685.65
Trade payables 385322 - - - 3,853.22
Other finanial liahifithes 1. 366,08 AT0.68 141704 57.60 9,32097
Total 1.202.42 2,043.59 8,162.07 T14.93 18,127.31
{lv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of Rature cash flows of & financiai instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. such as forcign exchange rates and interest rates

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company's main inlcrest rale risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expos¢ the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to inferest rate changes at the end of reporting period with respect to long term borrowings with variable interest rates from banks are as follows:

(in lakhs)

As at Asal

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Variubls rate long lerm borrwwings @ 13 cuiront mitirities = -
Total borrewings - -

(b} Scnsitivity
The Company’s main inlcrest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company lo cash flow interest rte risk
X in lukhs}

fmpact on profit or loss Impact on other
N components of equity
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2621

Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR rate - - - -
1 v in MOLR rate = s = =
The niterest rale sensitivity s based vl closig Silunce of secured tenn loans from banks

38 The Company had carried oul an impairment assessment of onc of the Cash Generating Units i.c. Dh hila Narayana Super Speciality Hospital (hercinaRer referred Lo as “'the CGU™} due 10 the

continued losses incurred in the CGU. Based on the detailed impairment evaluation carricd out by the Company duly considering the futire cash llows of the CGU, the Company has recarded an
impairment o T 1086.99 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2020 pertaining 16 the carrying value for tangible, intangible asseis and goodwill (hereinafler collectively referred 1o as (“Assets™) and
had disclosed the same ax an exceptional ilem in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020.

39 The Company has entered a Consultancy contract with The Government of SI. Lucia (GOSL) on October 7, 2020 for a period of 2 years (o co-ordinute and shire expertise on transition of Victoria
Hospital to Owen king Furopean Union Hospital (OKEUH) and provide advisory and liancy services for of operations of OKEEUH with u view to ensuring that global best

practices ure adhered to

40 Code on Social Security 2020
The Code on Social Sceurily, 2020 (the Code) has been enacted, which would impact the coniributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the
changes arc applicable is yel to be nolificd, The Ministry of Labour and Employment (the Minisiry) has relcased draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. The Company will complelc ils
cvaluation and will give appropriatc impact in its standalone financial results in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published

41 Other Statutory Information
(i) There arc no balance outstanding on account of any transaclion with companies struck off under Scction 248 of the Companics Act 2013 or Scction 560 of Companics Act 1956,

(ii) The Company do not have any Capital-work-in progress or intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared ta its original plan

(iii) The Company has not advanced or loancd or invested funds to uny other person(s) or entity(ies) including forcign enlities (intermediarics) with the understanding thal intermediary shall
(a) Directly lor indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manncr whatsocver by or on behalf of the company (Ultimste bene(iciarics) or
(b) Provide any guaraniee, sceurity or the like o or on behall of the Ultimale beneficiaries

(iv) The Company have not received any fund from any persun(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (Funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or utherw ise) that
(8) Directly for indirectiy lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in sny manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like o or un behulf of the Ultimate beneficiaries

(v) The company duesn't have any transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as incume in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) during the year.

(vi) The Compuny do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yct to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
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CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANT

Financial Rutios
Ratlo Methodol Fuou thie year enafeil For the year enideil 5
* arch 31,2012 Mareh3t 200 \iranee

8) Current Ratin' Current assets over current liabilities 0T 0.36 2060%
b) Dehi-Eyuity Ratio® Debt over lotal sharcholders' equity 1A A7 701.99%
¢) Debi Service Coverage Ratio® Earnings available for debl service over debt service 1.76 (0.29) 696.83%
d) Return on Equity Ratio PAT aver lotal average equily 472.74% 456.99% 15.75%
¢) Trade Reecivable urnover Ratio : Credil Revenue from operalions over average trade reecivables 47 2.9 180.99%
1) Trade payables tumover ratio Total purchases over average trade payables 17 1.45 17.94%
£} Net capital lurmover ratio® Revenue from operations over working capilal (11.22) (4.63) 14235%
h} Net profit ratio Net profit aver revenue from operations 7.34% -13.79% 21.12%
i) EBIDTA EBITDA over revenue from operations 19.88% 3.77% 16,10%
JHEBIT EBIT over revenue from opcrulions 14.66% -391% 18.58%
k) Return on capital cmploycd‘ PBIT over capilal employed 146.67% -15.76% 22243%
1) Inventory lumaver it Cosl of goods sold over average inventory 17.57 12.65 38.84%

Notey

EBIT - Earnings before interest and tuxes

PBIT - Profit before interest and taxes including other income
EBITDA - Eamnings before interest, laxes, depreciation and amortisation

PAT - Prolit aller taxes

Debt includes current and non-current borrowings
Cupital employed refers 10 total shareholders' equity and debt

Explanation for varlances exceeding 25%:

[ . . . A 0 9
Current ratio has improved on secount of increase in bunk balunce und Trade receivables as al year end when compared 10 previous yeur.

* Debt equily ratio and Debt Service Co erage rutio have imp

d on accoun! of

of borrowings and impioved profitability

Trude Receivables turnover ratio is increased duc o incresse in average trade reccivables when cempared to previous year

“Net capital tumover ratio and Return on capital

5 A g . N .
Inventory tumover ratio has improved on account of improvement in revenuc when compared Lo previous year

The Company has constdered the possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic and continues to arlively manage its business, i

1 R

d ratio's have i

d duc to imp! in

Nel prolit and EBIT numbers respectively when compared to previous year

ding taking vurious initiati

1o optimise

costs and meet its financial commitments. The Company as of the reporting date does not expect any long term adverse impact of COVID-19 on ils ability to recover the carrying value of its current
assets and non-current assets including trade receivables, property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets and meeting its financial obligations

For and on hyfhuif of the Board ol Dircctors of
yarayaaa [lrudayaleva Snegical Hospital Private Limlied
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